
 

1 
 

AGENDA 
 

Mason Transit Authority Board 
Regular Meeting 

February 18, 2020, 4:00 p.m. 
Mason Transit Authority 

to be held at the following location: 
Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street 

Shelton 
 

OPENING PROTOCOL 
CALL TO ORDER 
ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA – ACTION 
 

INTRODUCTION OF NEW BOARD MEMBER – MATT JEWETT 
 
RECOGNITION 
 
CORRESPONDENCE 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
CONSENT AGENDA – ACTION 

1. Pg. 004: Approval of Minutes: Approval of the minutes of the January 21, 2020 
     MTA regular Board meeting. 
2. Pg. 007: Financial Reports:  January, 2020 
3. Pg. 016: Check Approval: January 17 – February 12, 2020 
4. Pg. 024: MTA Board Committees 
 

REGULAR AGENDA 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS:   
1. Pg. 025: Appointment of Citizen Adviser to MTA Authority Board - ACTIONABLE 

     (Tracy) 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 

1. Pg. 026: Mason Transit Authority Sick Leave Policy (POL-310) –    
     Resolution No. 2020-04 – ACTIONABLE (LeeAnn) 

2. Pg. 042: Change Order #2 – DISCUSSION  (Tracy) 
3. Pg. 048: Summer Youth Pass Interlocal Agreement –      

    Resolution No. 2020-05 – ACTIONABLE (Mike) 
4. Pg. 053: Bus and Bus Livability Grant Opportunity – ACTIONABLE (LeeAnn) 

 
INFORMATIONAL  
 Reports 

1. Pg. 055: Park and Ride Update 
2. Pg. 056: Management Reports 
3. Recap of All-MTA Meeting (LeeAnn) 

 
GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT – Ms. Brannin is away attending the Transit Bus Summit. The 
Summit is held annually by invitation and it brings approximately 50 transit directors in all 
fields together to discuss ideas and share experiences on what is working and what isn’t in the 
transit industry. There are also suppliers in attendance available to provide information on 
products. 

February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 1



 

2 
 

 
COMMENTS BY BOARD 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
UPCOMING MEETINGS: 
 

 
 

Mason Transit Authority 
Regular Meeting 

March 17, 2020 at 4:00 p.m. 
Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street 

Shelton 
 

All participants are welcome. The meeting locations are ADA accessible. If you anticipate needing any type 
of accommodation or have questions about the physical access provided, please call 360-426-9434 in 
advance. We will make every effort to meet accommodation requests. 

February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 2



February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 3



1 

 

               

Mason Transit Authority 
Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting  
January 21, 2020 
Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street 
Shelton 
 
 
OPENING PROTOCOL 
 
CALL TO ORDER: 4:00 p.m.  
 
Authority Voting Board Members Present: Randy Neatherlin, Chair; Wes Martin, 
Vice Chair; John Campbell, Kevin Dorcy, Deb Petersen, Kevin Shutty, Sandy Tarzwell and 
Sharon Trask. Quorum met.  
 
Authority Voting Board Members Not Present: [Vacant Position.] 
 
Authority Non-voting Board Member Present: Greg Heidal, Business Representative, 
IAM and AW, District Lodge 160. 
 
Citizen Advisor to the Board Present: John Piety 
 
Others Present:  Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board; Robert Johnson, Legal Counsel; 
Danette Brannin, General Manager; LeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services Manager and 
Mike Ringgenberg, Operations Manager.  
 

ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA 
 
Moved that the agenda for the January 21, 2020 Mason Transit Authority (MTA) regular board 
meeting be approved. Martin/Trask. Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT – None. 
 
INFORMATIONAL PRESENTATION 
Amy Sampson and Rachel Parker of the North Mason Regional Fire Authority QRT team 
spoke on the history of the team, its current process and flow. A brief tour of the vehicle was 
provided to the Board and attendees. The vehicle was previously sold to the North Mason 
Regional Fire Authority by MTA for $1.00 through an intergovernmental disposition as 
approved by the Board in October, 2018. 
 
BOARD ELECTIONS FOR 2020 BOARD OFFICERS 

1. Chair.  Board member Shutty nominated Vice Chair Martin to serve as Chair of the 
Board. Vice Chair Martin accepted the nomination. Additional calls for nomination were 
asked with no others being made. Shutty/Trask. Motion carried unanimously. 

2. Vice Chair. Board member Shutty nominated Board member Trask to serve as 
Vice Chair of the Board. Board member Trask accepted the nomination. Additional calls 
for nomination were asked with no others being made. Shutty/Dorcy. Motion carried 
unanimously. 

February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 4



2 

 

               

 
Newly elected Board Chair Martin assumed as Chair for the balance of the meeting. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Moved to approve Consent Agenda items 1 – 3, as follows: 
 

1. Moved to approve the draft minutes of the MTA Board regular meeting of 
December 17, 2019. 

 
2. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve the financial reports for 

December 2019 as presented. 
 
3. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve the payments of 

December 12, 2019 through January 16, 2020 financial obligations on checks #33552 
through #33701, as presented for a total of $1,388,260.56. 

 
Shutty/Petersen. Motion carried. 
 
REGULAR AGENDA 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
1. Strategic Plan for Approval – Danette Brannin, General Manager, indicated to the Board 

that the only change made to the Strategic Plan since it was brought before the Board in 
draft form in December was a change requested by Board member Campbell. Moved that 
the Mason Transit Authority Board adopt Resolution No. 2020-01 to approve the Strategic 
Plan. Trask/Petersen. Motion carried. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
1. LMTAAA Contract – LeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services Manager, shared with the 

Board that the contract with the Lewis-Mason-Thurston Area Agency on Aging is being 
renewed for a one-year period. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board authorize the 
Chair to execute the Lewis-Mason-Thurston Area Agency on Aging Contract Number 18-
1120-0041-06(3) for the provision of volunteer transportation services.  
Neatherlin/Petersen. Motion carried. 

2. Change Order #1 – Roundabout Project – Ms. Brannin provided the Board with 
information relating to Change Order #1. 

3. Salary Compensation and Wage Matrix – Ms. McNulty indicated that the first version of 
the Non-represented Placement Schedule was previously provided to the Board with the 
second draft of the 2020 Budget in November as well as research relating to the wages. 
Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board adopt Resolution No. 2020-02, to approve 
the Non-Represented Placement Scheduled. Trask/Dorcy. Motion carried. 

February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 5



3 

 

               

4. Capital Grant Agreement PTD005 – Ms. Brannin informed the Board that MTA had been 
awarded a Capital Grant Agreement for the purchase of two replacement heavy duty hybrid 
buses that will be used to replace two of MTA’s worker driver buses. Moved that the Mason 
Transit Authority Board approve Resolution No. 2020-03 that approves the Capital Grant 
Agreement PTD0005 and authorizes the General Manager to sign that Agreement. 
Shutty/Tarzwell. Motion carried. 

5. Appointment of Citizen Adviser to MTA Authority Board – Ms. Brannin shared with 
the Board that the Citizen Adviser role is for a one-year term and that MTA had received two 
applications for the Citizen Adviser. After each of the two candidates responded to questions 
posed by Board members, it was moved that there be a delay of appointing the Citizen 
Adviser until the February regular board meeting. Shutty/Trask. Motion carried. 

 
INFORMATIONAL 
Ms. Brannin updated the Board relating to the park and ride projects and securing a lobbyist. 
Ms. McNulty went over the information of the Operational Reports. 
 
GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT – Ms. Brannin had no additions to what was in her report. 
 
COMMENTS BY THE BOARD 
Board member Campbell commented that things are looking good for MTA.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT – [None]. 
 
Moved that the meeting be adjourned.  

ADJOURNED 5:06 p.m. 
 
UPCOMING MEETINGS AND PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
 

Mason Transit Authority Board 
Regular Meeting 

February 18, 2020 at 4:00 p.m. 
Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street 

Shelton 
 
 

February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 6



February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 7



February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 8



February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 9



February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 10



February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 11



February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 12



February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 13



February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 14



February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 15



February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 16



February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 17



February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 18



February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 19



February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 20



February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 21



February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 22



February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 23



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   Consent Agenda – Item 4 – Actionable 
Subject:    Establish 2020 Authority Board Committees 
Prepared by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    February 18, 2020 
 
Background: 
 
As we move into 2020, we have had the annual rotation of the Chair, as well as having 
a new Board member. Additionally, the role of Chair is to remain in a more neutral 
position, so that committee position will need to be filled as well as our new Board 
member. Due to those changes, we have circulated a request for preferences as to 
which committees Board members wish to serve, as well as forward one to our newly 
appointed Board member, Matt Jewett of Southside School District. 
 
Section 8.1 of the MTA Bylaws provides that each committee shall be composed for not 
more than three Authority Board members; one member representing the City of 
Shelton, one member representing Mason County and one member representing a 
district. Committee Chairs and committee members may be designated by the Authority 
Chair, subject to confirmation by the Authority Board. The terms of the standing 
committees will coincide with the terms of the Authority Board officers. 
 
Based on the responses received by the Board members, recommend the following 
Board members be assigned to the following Authority Board Committees: 
 
Finance:  Wes Martin and Sharon Trask 
Human Resources: Deb Petersen and Kevin Shutty 
Policy:  John Campbell and Randy Neatherlin 
Operations and Maintenance: Kevin Dorcy and Matt Jewett 
 
 
Summary: Approve Board members to serve on certain Authority Board 
Committees. 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
None. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve. 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve the Board members to serve on 
the Authority Board Committees as set forth above.  

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 24



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   Unfinished Business – Item 1 – Actionable 
Subject:    Appointment of Citizen Adviser to MTA Authority Board 
Prepared by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    February 18, 2020 
 
 
Background: 
 
At the January meeting, the Board tabled the appointment of its Citizen Adviser for 
2020. Since that meeting, Mr. Farmer indicated to the Clerk of the Authority Board that 
he has decided to withdraw his application. 
 
 
Summary:  Appoint Citizen Adviser for 2020. 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
0 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve. 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board reappoint citizen John Piety to serve as 
the non-voting citizen adviser to the Board with the term being January-December, 
2020.  
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 25



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   New Business – Item 1 – Actionable 
Subject:    MTA Sick Leave Policy (POL-310)  
Prepared by:  LeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    February 18, 2020 
 
 
Background: 
 
This policy was last updated in January, 2019 and relates to the unprotected sick leave 
provided by MTA to its employees, which is separate from the protected WA Paid Sick 
Leave Policy. The updates are to provide additional clarification for all employees to 
understand processes and expectations for the following: 
 

• unforeseeable absences; 
• verification for absences; 
• unexcused absences; 
• use of vacation leave for sick; and 
• leave without pay for sick. 

 
These distinctive clarifications will assist MTA employees by outlining the steps when 
unforeseeable or unexcused absences occur, as they are different than when they are 
using their WA Paid Sick Leave. 
 
This policy has been reviewed by the Policy Committee and legal counsel. 
 
 
Summary: Approve revised MTA Sick Leave Policy (POL-310) 
 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
None. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve. 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve Resolution No. 2020-04 and the 
attached MTA Sick Leave Policy (POL-310).  

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 26



 
 

Title: Mason Transit Authority Sick Leave Policy 
Number: 310 
Effective: January 1February 18, 202019 
Cancels: January 1, 2019N/A 
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty, 
 Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 202018-0423 

 

Page 1 of 7 

POL-310 MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY SICK LEAVE POLICY 

This policy applies to all Mason Transit Authority (MTA) regular full-time 
employees. 

1.0 Purpose 

1.1  In addition to the Washington Paid Sick Leave Policy, Mason Transit Authority 
Sick Leave (MTASL) is available for all regular full-time employees to use for 
qualifying reasons per this policy.   

 
1.2 This policy details the use of MTASL for excused/unexcused absences. 
 

2.0 Policy 

2.1 Qualifying Reasons to Use MTA Sick Leave  
MTASL may be used for the following reasons:  

o An employee’s mental or physical illness, injury, health condition, and/or 
preventive care, diagnosis, or treatment, such as a medical, dental, or 
optical appointment;  

o Care of a family member with a mental or physical illness, injury, health 
condition and/or preventive care, diagnosis, or treatment, such as a 
medical, dental, or optical appointment;  

o To make up the difference between the amounts received from L & I 
time-loss benefits and the employee’s regular pay when an employee is 
receiving L & I benefits; 

o Closure of the employee’s place of business or child’s school/place of 
care by order of a public official for any health-related reasons; or 

o To address issues related to domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking 
when the employee or the employee’s family member is a victim. 
Qualifying activities include seeking legal or law enforcement assistance 
or court relief, counseling or treatment by a health care provider, and 
obtaining support services (e.g., shelter, crisis outreach, safety planning, 
relocation assistance). 

 
2.2 Accrual of MTA Sick Leave  

Regular full-time employees accrue MTASL at the rate of 1.69 hours per pay 
period for full-time employees. For example, 1.69 hours per pay period x 26 pay 
periods = 44 (rounded) hours MTASL per year in addition to the 52 hours accrued 
(assuming no overtime worked) under the Washington Paid Sick Leave Policy, as 

February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 27



 
 

Title: Mason Transit Authority Sick Leave Policy 
Number: 310 
Effective: January 1February 18, 202019 
Cancels: January 1, 2019N/A 
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty, 
 Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 202018-0423 

 

Page 2 of 7 

required by law, for a total of 96 hours per year. MTASL balance will not exceed 
960 hours. Hours above 960 will be forfeited.  
 
The leave accrual period is January 1st through December 31st.  

 
All eligible employees begin accruing MTASL at the commencement of 
employment.  

 
At the start of employment, all eligible employees will receive information about 
the MTASL Policy. 

 
2.3 Eligibility to Use Accrued MTA Sick Leave  

Regular, full-time employees are eligible to use accrued MTASL upon 
commencement of their employment. 
 
MTASL accrued during a pay period may not be used until the following pay 
period. 

 
2.4 Reasonable Notice for the Use of MTA Sick Leave 

Employees must provide reasonable notice, as described below, to his or her 
team manager regarding use of MTASL whenever possible, along with a Paylocity 
Time-Off Request. If no advance notice is possible, then the request must be 
submitted on the day following the employee’s return to work. If possible, the 
request should include the expected return date. Information provided will be 
kept confidential. 
 
Foreseeable Absences.  If the absence is foreseeable, the employee must notify 
his or her team manager at least 10 days, or as early as possible, before the first 
day MTASL will be used. 
 
Unforeseeable Absences.  If the absence is unforeseeable, the employee must 
notify his or her team manager as soon as possible. 
• If advance notice is possible, the employee must provide such notice no 
later than one (1) hour before the employee’s scheduled start time. 
• If advance notice is not possible, the employee or a person on the 
employee’s behalf, must provide such notice, as soon as possible. 
• Calling out no later than one (1) hour before does not mean the absence 
is excused.  See sections 2.10 and 2.11. 

February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 28



 
 

Title: Mason Transit Authority Sick Leave Policy 
Number: 310 
Effective: January 1February 18, 202019 
Cancels: January 1, 2019N/A 
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty, 
 Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 202018-0423 

 

Page 3 of 7 

 
 

2.5 Verification for Absences  
The employee may be required to provide verification for using MTASL for a qualifying 
reason, or upon reasonable suspicion of sick leave abuse (e.g., Pattern Absence, i.e. 
calling out after vacation was denied), as provided below. If verification is requested, 
the employee must submit a completed verification form to team manager or 
supervisor no less than 10 calendar days from the first day an employee used MTASL 
upon returning to duty. Duration of the absence must be outlined in the verification. 
 
Consecutive days/hours of absence attributable to a single illness will be 
considered one occurrence.  Non-consecutive occurrences for the same medical 
reason may be combined if the subsequent unscheduled absence is within five 
(5) days of the last day of the original unscheduled absence.  
 
An employee may choose to provide verification on their own accord to verify 
reason for absence. If it the verification supports is a qualifying reason as 
described in 2.1, the employee will be considered excused. 
 
 
For the employee’s own health care or the care for a family member.  A health 
care provider’s signed statement that establishes or confirms that the use of 
MTASL is for an authorized purpose. The verification provides information about 
the nature of the illness, injury, or disability, and the beginning and end dates. 
 
To make up the difference between the amounts between L & I time-loss 
benefits and an employee’s regular pay.  Documentation to show the value of 
time-loss payments received during the relevant time period.  
 
Closure of the employee’s place of business or child’s school/place of care.  
Documentation of the notice of closure by a public official that the employee 
received regarding the employee’s child’s school or place of care. 
 
To address issues related to domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking.  
Documentation may include a police report, court record, prosecuting attorney’s 
office record, or a signed note from a health care provider, social worker, 
counselor sufficient to show that the employee or an employee’s family member 
is a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking and the leave was 

February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 29



 
 

Title: Mason Transit Authority Sick Leave Policy 
Number: 310 
Effective: January 1February 18, 202019 
Cancels: January 1, 2019N/A 
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty, 
 Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 202018-0423 

 

Page 4 of 7 

taken to address related issues. Other documentation may be acceptable, as 
determined by the Administrative Services Manager or designee. 
 

2.6 Increments of Use for MTA Sick Leave  
Employees are allowed to use MTASL in increments of .25 hour. 
 

2.7  Payroll  
Employees will be notified of their MTASL accrued, usage, and current balances 
for each pay period on a direct deposit statement and/or Paylocity’s Time-Off 
section of the Self-Service Portal. 

 
2.8  Rate of Pay When Using MTA Sick Leave  

Sick leave hours will be compensated at an employee’s regular rate of pay, 
excluding overtime rates, where applicable. Sick leave hours will not count 
toward the calculation of overtime. 

 
2.9  Separation from Employment  

If an employee separates from employment, he or she forfeits any unused, 
accrued MTASL. 

 
2.10  Excused Absences  

Absences are excused when a Time-Off Request is submitted and approved in 
advance by the team manager or supervisor for a qualifying reason to use MTASL 
as listed in  Sectionin Section 2.1. An Excused Absence also includes an absence 
that has been satisfactorily verified by a method described in Section 2.5 upon 
return to work by the employee. 

 
2.11  Unexcused Absences  

Unexcused absences will be reviewed by a manager or supervisor. Employee 
verification may be required, per Section 2.5. if it has not been submitted by the 
employee. If it is determined corrective action is needed, the corrective action 
will be consistent with the Performance Counseling Policy. 
 
An absence will be considered unexcused if not pre-approved at least 24 hours 
prior to the start of the shift. 
 

February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 30



 
 

Title: Mason Transit Authority Sick Leave Policy 
Number: 310 
Effective: January 1February 18, 202019 
Cancels: January 1, 2019N/A 
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty, 
 Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 202018-0423 

 

Page 5 of 7 

Consecutive days/hours of absence attributable to a single illness will be 
considered one occurrence.  Non-consecutive occurrences for the same medical 
reason may be combined if the subsequent unscheduled absence is within five 
(5) days of the last day of the original unscheduled absence. 
 
24 hours of unexcused qualifying sick leave absences in a rolling twelve-month 
period will be the basis for a coaching discussion between the employee and the 
manager/supervisor andwith additional unexcused absences may potentially 
leading to further progressive discipline through MTA’s Performance Counseling 
Policy.   
 
Four (4)32 hours of unscheduled unexcused qualifying sick leave absences in a 
rolling twelve-month period will be the basis for a coaching discussioninitiating 
progressive discipline with a verbal warning through MTA’s Performance 
Counseling Policy. between the employee and the supervisor and may 
potentially lead to further progressive discipline through MTA’s Performance 
Counseling Policy. 
 
 

# of Unexcused Hours Consequence 
24 Unexcused Hours Coaching Discussion 
32 Unexcused Hours Verbal Warning 
40 Unexcused Hours Written Warning 
48 Unexcused Hours 2 Days Suspension Without Pay 
56 Unexcused Hours Review of Termination with General Manager 

 
 

2.12 No-Call / No-Show 

Not reporting to work and not calling to report the absence is considered a no-
call / no-show, andno-show and is a serious matter.  Upon notification from the 
team manager, a no-call / no show will be reviewed by the Administrative 
Services Manager and/or General Manager to determine appropriate discipline, 
up to and including termination.   Any no-call / no-show for three or more days 
constitutes job abandonment and will result in immediate termination of 
employment. 

 

February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 31



 
 

Title: Mason Transit Authority Sick Leave Policy 
Number: 310 
Effective: January 1February 18, 202019 
Cancels: January 1, 2019N/A 
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty, 
 Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 202018-0423 

 

Page 6 of 7 

If the discipline process for attendance has already begun with an employee 
when a no-call / no-show occurs, the disciplinary process may be accelerated up 
to and including termination. 

 
Management may consider extenuating circumstances when determining 
discipline for a no-call / no-show and may exercise discretion in such case (for 
example, if the employee is in a serious accident and is hospitalized). 

 

2.13 Use of Vacation Leave for Sick 

Accrued vacation leave may only be used to cover a qualifying sick leave absence 
when the event is pre-arranged.  Per each collective bargaining agreement and 
the employee handbook, the use of vacation leave must be approved in advance. 

 

2.14 Leave without pay (LWOP) for Sick 

In cases where no sick leave is available,  and the use of vacation leave has not 
been pre-arranged or there is no vacation leave available,  absence has not been 
pre-arranged, the employee maywill be in a LWOP situation.  Unexcused LWOP 
absences do count toward unexcused hours and may be subject to progressive 
discipline. 

  

3.0 Definitions 

o “Family member” is defined as a child (including biological, adopted, foster, step, in loco 
parentis, or legal guardian) or parent (including biological, adopted, foster, step, de 
facto, or legal guardian) to the employee or the employee’s spouse/registered 
domestic partner, a spouse, registered domestic partner, grandparent, grandchild, or 
sibling. 
 

o "Health-related reason" means a serious public health concern that could result in 
bodily injury or exposure to an infectious agent, biological toxin, or hazardous material. 
Health-related reason does not include closures for inclement weather. 

 
o "Commencement of employment" means no later than the beginning of the first day on 

which the employee is authorized or required by the employer to be on duty on the 
employer's premises or at a prescribed workplace. 

February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 32



 
 

Title: Mason Transit Authority Sick Leave Policy 
Number: 310 
Effective: January 1February 18, 202019 
Cancels: January 1, 2019N/A 
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty, 
 Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 202018-0423 

 

Page 7 of 7 

 
o “Excused absence” is defined as a Time Off Request submitted in advance and approved 

by the Manager/Supervisor.  
 

o “Unexcused absence” is defined as a call out or no-show on a scheduled workday 
without an approved Time-off Request. 

 
“Pattern Absence” is defined as an absence that shows a pattern such as but not 
exclusive to unexcused absences the day before or after a scheduled holiday, vacation, 
or personal day; on a desirable day off, a specific day of the week, or a weekend; a 
specific or unique work day; or as sick leave is accrued. 
 
“LWOP” is defined as an absence where there is no available vacation, sick or personal 
hours to cover an absence. 

February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 33



Resolution No. 2020-04 Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-04 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD 
ADOPTING A REVISED MTA SICK LEAVE POLICY (POL-310) AND 

SUPERSEDING AND REPLACING IN FULL ANY PREVIOUSLY ADOPTED 
OR APPROVED MTA SICK LEAVE POLICY. 

 
WHEREAS, the Mason Transit Authority Board has previously created and revised 

its MTA Sick Leave Policy (POL-310) and desires to provide additional clarification for all 
employees to understand the processes and expectations relating to unforeseeable and 
verification for absences; unexcused absences; use of vacation leave for sick and leave 
without pay for sick; and 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
BOARD that the Mason Transit Authority Sick Leave Policy (POL-310), which is attached hereto 
and incorporated herein, be established and adopted; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Mason Transit Authority Sick Leave Policy 
(POL-310) shall supersede and replace in full any previously adopted or approved Mason 
Transit Authority Sick Leave policy, including rescinding Resolution No. 2018-23. 
 

Adopted this 18th day of February, 2020. 
 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Wes Martin, Chair     Sharon Trask, Vice-Chair 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
John Campbell, Authority Member   Kevin Dorcy, Authority Member 
 
 
_______________________________  ______________________________ 
Matt Jewett, Authority Member    Randy Neatherlin, Authority Member  
 
 
______________________________  ____________________________ 
Deborah Petersen, Authority Member  Kevin Shutty, Authority Member 
 

February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 34



Resolution No. 2020-04 Page 2 of 2 
 

 
______________________________  
Sandy Tarzwell, Authority Member 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:    _______    ______ 
          Danette Brannin, General Manager 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:        ______ 
    Robert W. Johnson, Legal Counsel 
 
 
ATTEST:        DATE:    ______ 
           Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board 

February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 35



 
 

Title: Mason Transit Authority Sick Leave Policy 
Number: 310 
Effective: February 18, 2020 
Cancels: January 1, 2019 
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty, 
 Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2020-04 

 

Page 1 of 6 

POL-310 MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY SICK LEAVE POLICY 

This policy applies to all Mason Transit Authority (MTA) regular full-time 
employees. 

1.0 Purpose 

1.1  In addition to the Washington Paid Sick Leave Policy, Mason Transit Authority 
Sick Leave (MTASL) is available for all regular full-time employees to use for 
qualifying reasons per this policy.   

 
1.2 This policy details the use of MTASL for excused/unexcused absences. 
 

2.0 Policy 

2.1 Qualifying Reasons to Use MTA Sick Leave  
MTASL may be used for the following reasons:  

o An employee’s mental or physical illness, injury, health condition, and/or 
preventive care, diagnosis, or treatment, such as a medical, dental, or 
optical appointment;  

o Care of a family member with a mental or physical illness, injury, health 
condition and/or preventive care, diagnosis, or treatment, such as a 
medical, dental, or optical appointment;  

o To make up the difference between the amounts received from L & I 
time-loss benefits and the employee’s regular pay when an employee is 
receiving L & I benefits; 

o Closure of the employee’s place of business or child’s school/place of 
care by order of a public official for any health-related reasons; or 

o To address issues related to domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking 
when the employee or the employee’s family member is a victim. 
Qualifying activities include seeking legal or law enforcement assistance 
or court relief, counseling or treatment by a health care provider, and 
obtaining support services (e.g., shelter, crisis outreach, safety planning, 
relocation assistance). 

 
2.2 Accrual of MTA Sick Leave  

Regular full-time employees accrue MTASL at the rate of 1.69 hours per pay 
period for full-time employees. For example, 1.69 hours per pay period x 26 pay 
periods = 44 (rounded) hours MTASL per year in addition to the 52 hours accrued 
(assuming no overtime worked) under the Washington Paid Sick Leave Policy, as 

February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 36



 
 

Title: Mason Transit Authority Sick Leave Policy 
Number: 310 
Effective: February 18, 2020 
Cancels: January 1, 2019 
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty, 
 Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2020-04 

 

Page 2 of 6 

required by law, for a total of 96 hours per year. MTASL balance will not exceed 
960 hours. Hours above 960 will be forfeited.  
 
The leave accrual period is January 1st through December 31st.  

 
All eligible employees begin accruing MTASL at the commencement of 
employment.  

 
At the start of employment, all eligible employees will receive information about 
the MTASL Policy. 

 
2.3 Eligibility to Use Accrued MTA Sick Leave  

Regular, full-time employees are eligible to use accrued MTASL upon 
commencement of their employment. 
 
MTASL accrued during a pay period may not be used until the following pay 
period. 

 
2.4 Reasonable Notice for the Use of MTA Sick Leave 

Employees must provide reasonable notice, as described below, to his or her 
team manager regarding use of MTASL whenever possible, along with a Paylocity 
Time-Off Request. If no advance notice is possible, then the request must be 
submitted on the day following the employee’s return to work. If possible, the 
request should include the expected return date. Information provided will be 
kept confidential. 
 
Foreseeable Absences.  If the absence is foreseeable, the employee must notify 
his or her team manager at least 10 days, or as early as possible, before the first 
day MTASL will be used. 
 
Unforeseeable Absences.  If the absence is unforeseeable, the employee must 
notify his or her team manager as soon as possible. 
• If advance notice is possible, the employee must provide such notice no 
later than one (1) hour before the employee’s scheduled start time. 
• If advance notice is not possible, the employee or a person on the 
employee’s behalf, must provide such notice, as soon as possible. 
• Calling out no later than one (1) hour before does not mean the absence 
is excused.  See sections 2.10 and 2.11. 

February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 37



 
 

Title: Mason Transit Authority Sick Leave Policy 
Number: 310 
Effective: February 18, 2020 
Cancels: January 1, 2019 
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty, 
 Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2020-04 

 

Page 3 of 6 

 
 

2.5 Verification for Absences  
The employee may be required to provide verification for using MTASL for a qualifying 
reason, or upon reasonable suspicion of sick leave abuse (e.g., Pattern Absence, i.e. 
calling out after vacation was denied), as provided below. If verification is requested, 
the employee must submit a completed verification form to team manager or 
supervisor  upon returning to dutyDuration of the absence must be outlined in the 
verification. 
 
Consecutive days/hours of absence attributable to a single illness will be 
considered one occurrence.  Non-consecutive occurrences for the same medical 
reason may be combined if the subsequent unscheduled absence is within five 
(5) days of the last day of the original unscheduled absence.  
 
An employee may choose to provide verification on their own accord to verify 
reason for absence. If  the verification supports a qualifying reason as described 
in 2.1, the employee will be considered excused. 
 
For the employee’s own health care or the care for a family member.  A health 
care provider’s signed statement that establishes or confirms that the use of 
MTASL is for an authorized purpose. The verification provides information about 
the nature of the illness, injury, or disability, and the beginning and end dates. 
 
To make up the difference between the amounts between L & I time-loss 
benefits and an employee’s regular pay.  Documentation to show the value of 
time-loss payments received during the relevant time period.  
 
Closure of the employee’s place of business or child’s school/place of care.  
Documentation of the notice of closure by a public official that the employee 
received regarding the employee’s child’s school or place of care. 
 
To address issues related to domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking.  
Documentation may include a police report, court record, prosecuting attorney’s 
office record, or a signed note from a health care provider, social worker, 
counselor sufficient to show that the employee or an employee’s family member 
is a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking and the leave was 
taken to address related issues. Other documentation may be acceptable, as 
determined by the Administrative Services Manager or designee. 

February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 38



 
 

Title: Mason Transit Authority Sick Leave Policy 
Number: 310 
Effective: February 18, 2020 
Cancels: January 1, 2019 
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty, 
 Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2020-04 

 

Page 4 of 6 

 
2.6 Increments of Use for MTA Sick Leave  

Employees are allowed to use MTASL in increments of .25 hour. 
 

2.7  Payroll  
Employees will be notified of their MTASL accrued, usage, and current balances 
for each pay period on a direct deposit statement and/or Paylocity’s Time-Off 
section of the Self-Service Portal. 

 
2.8  Rate of Pay When Using MTA Sick Leave  

Sick leave hours will be compensated at an employee’s regular rate of pay, 
excluding overtime rates, where applicable. Sick leave hours will not count 
toward the calculation of overtime. 

 
2.9  Separation from Employment  

If an employee separates from employment, he or she forfeits any unused, 
accrued MTASL. 

 
2.10  Excused Absences  

Absences are excused when a Time-Off Request is submitted and approved in 
advance by the team manager or supervisor for a qualifying reason to use MTASL 
as listed in Section 2.1. An Excused Absence also includes an absence that has 
been satisfactorily verified by a method described in Section 2.5 upon return to 
work by the employee. 

 
2.11  Unexcused Absences  

Unexcused absences will be reviewed by a manager or supervisor. Employee 
verification may be required, per Section 2.5 if it has not been submitted by the 
employee. If it is determined corrective action is needed, the corrective action 
will be consistent with the Performance Counseling Policy. 
 
An absence will be considered unexcused if not pre-approved at least 24 hours 
prior to the start of the shift. 
 
 
24 hours of unexcused qualifying sick leave absences in a rolling twelve-month 
period will be the basis for a coaching discussion between the employee and the 

February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 39



 
 

Title: Mason Transit Authority Sick Leave Policy 
Number: 310 
Effective: February 18, 2020 
Cancels: January 1, 2019 
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty, 
 Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2020-04 

 

Page 5 of 6 

manager/supervisor with additional unexcused absences potentially leading to 
further progressive discipline through MTA’s Performance Counseling Policy.   
 
32 hours of unexcused qualifying sick leave absences in a rolling twelve-month 
period will be the basis for initiating progressive discipline with a verbal warning 
through MTA’s Performance Counseling Policy.  
 
 

# of Unexcused Hours Consequence 
24 Unexcused Hours Coaching Discussion 
32 Unexcused Hours Verbal Warning 
40 Unexcused Hours Written Warning 
48 Unexcused Hours 2 Days Suspension Without Pay 
56 Unexcused Hours Review of Termination with General Manager 

 
 

2.12 No-Call / No-Show 

Not reporting to work and not calling to report the absence is considered a no-
call / no-show and is a serious matter.  Upon notification from the team 
manager, a no-call / no show will be reviewed by the Administrative Services 
Manager and/or General Manager to determine appropriate discipline, up to 
and including termination.   Any no-call / no-show for three or more days 
constitutes job abandonment and will result in immediate termination of 
employment. 

 
If the discipline process for attendance has already begun with an employee 
when a no-call / no-show occurs, the disciplinary process may be accelerated up 
to and including termination. 

 
Management may consider extenuating circumstances when determining 
discipline for a no-call / no-show and may exercise discretion in such case (for 
example, if the employee is in a serious accident and is hospitalized). 

 

2.13 Use of Vacation Leave for Sick 

Accrued vacation leave may only be used to cover a qualifying sick leave absence 
when the event is pre-arranged.  Per each collective bargaining agreement and 
the employee handbook, the use of vacation leave must be approved in advance. 

February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 40



 
 

Title: Mason Transit Authority Sick Leave Policy 
Number: 310 
Effective: February 18, 2020 
Cancels: January 1, 2019 
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty, 
 Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2020-04 

 

Page 6 of 6 

 

2.14 Leave without pay (LWOP) for Sick 

3.0 In cases where no sick leave is available,  the use of vacation leave has not been pre-
arranged or there is no vacation leave available,   the employee will be in a LWOP 
situation.  Unexcused LWOP absences do count toward unexcused hours and may be 
subject to progressive discipline. Definitions 

o “Family member” is defined as a child (including biological, adopted, foster, step, in loco 
parentis, or legal guardian) or parent (including biological, adopted, foster, step, de 
facto, or legal guardian) to the employee or the employee’s spouse/registered 
domestic partner, a spouse, registered domestic partner, grandparent, grandchild, or 
sibling. 
 

o "Health-related reason" means a serious public health concern that could result in 
bodily injury or exposure to an infectious agent, biological toxin, or hazardous material. 
Health-related reason does not include closures for inclement weather. 

 
o "Commencement of employment" means no later than the beginning of the first day on 

which the employee is authorized or required by the employer to be on duty on the 
employer's premises or at a prescribed workplace. 
 

o “Excused absence” is defined as a Time Off Request submitted in advance and approved 
by the Manager/Supervisor.  
 

o “Unexcused absence” is defined as a call out or no-show on a scheduled workday 
without an approved Time-off Request. 

 
“Pattern Absence” is defined as an absence that shows a pattern such as but not 
exclusive to unexcused absences the day before or after a scheduled holiday, vacation, 
or personal day; on a desirable day off, a specific day of the week, or a weekend; a 
specific or unique work day; or as sick leave is accrued. 
 
“LWOP” is defined as an absence where there is no available vacation, sick or personal 
hours to cover an absence. 

February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 41



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   New Business – Item 2 – Informational 
Subject:    Change Order #2 – Roundabout Project 
Prepared by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    February 18, 2020 
 
 
Background: 
 
This Change Order is for Time and Materials to restore and repair the access road that 
was used while clearing and installing relocated gate. The access road belonged to the 
property owner and was not on MTA property. 
 
 
 
Summary: Information provided regarding Change Order #2 in an amount 
not to exceed $13,100. 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
Not to Exceed $13,100 
 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 42



February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 43



February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 44



February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 45



February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 46



February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 47



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   New Business – Item 3 – Actionable 
Subject:    Interlocal Agreement 2020-2022 
Prepared by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    February 18, 2020 
 
 
Background: 
 
MTA partners with Grays Harbor Transportation Authority, Clallam Transit System, 
Jefferson Transit Authority and Pacific Transit System to implement and promote youth 
ridership in the summer months by having a Summer Youth Pass program. The pass is 
valid Memorial Day to Labor Day and is good on all of the participating transit agencies. 
 
The previous interlocal agreement related to calendar years 2017-2019 and a new 
interlocal agreement must be signed by all of the parties in preparation for the new 
program in 2020-2022.  
 
 
Summary:  Approve Interlocal Agreement for Summer Youth Pass Program 
and authorize General Manager to sign the Interlocal Agreement. 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
None. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve. 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve Resolution No. 2020-05 
authorizing the General Manager to sign the Summer Youth Pass Program Interlocal 
Agreement 2020-2022.  
 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 48



SUMMER YOUTH PASS PROGRAM 
INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 2020-2022 

 
This INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT is made by and between the Clallam Transit System (“CTS”), Grays Harbor 
Transportation Authority (“GRAYS HARBOR”), Jefferson Transit Authority (“JEFFERSON”), Mason Transit Authority 
(“MASON”), and Pacific Transit System (“PACIFIC”), and known collectively as the parties (“THE PARTIES”). 
 
WHEREAS, CTS, GRAYS HARBOR, JEFFERSON, MASON, and PACIFIC are each public transportation benefit 
authorities (PTBAs), organized under the provisions of Chapter 36.57A, RCW, and are municipal corporations of the 
State of Washington. 
 
WHEREAS, each of THE PARTIES operates a public transportation service within its respective county. 

 
WHEREAS, each of THE PARTIES, as part of the operation of such public transportation service, provides for a 
“Summer Youth Pass Program.” The program permits certain persons to purchase a transit pass which is valid from 
Memorial Day through Labor Day, and which permits the holder of that pass to ride the bus within the respective 
jurisdiction for no further charge than initially paid for the pass, during the effective dates of the pass. 

 
WHEREAS, THE PARTIES are desirous of expanding the geographical area available to holders of these passes, by 
agreeing that each will fully honor such a pass issued by another of the entities. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above representations and the mutual covenants and promises 
contained in this AGREEMENT, and pursuant to the authority granted by the Interlocal Cooperation Act, Chapter 
39.34, RCW, it is agreed between THE PARTIES as follows: 
 

1. During calendar years 2020-2022, each of THE PARTIES will fully honor a “Summer Youth Pass” issued by 
any other of THE PARTIES from 12:01 a.m. on Memorial Day through 11:59 p.m. on Labor Day. During this 
period of time, none of the entities shall charge any persons presenting such a pass any additional fee or 
charge for riding their respective bus systems anywhere within the service area of the party. 
 

2. This AGREEMENT shall only apply to use of the passes on fixed-route services. 
 

3. One PARTY will agree to provide THE PARTIES, within twenty (20) calendar days of the date of the 
execution of this AGREEMENT, with a specimen copy of the pass to which this AGREEMENT applies. The 
obligation to honor passes shall only apply to originals of such specimen passes. 
 

4. THE PARTIES will identify the agency(ies) to lead the design, procurement, and distribution of the passes to 
each of THE PARTIES. 
 

5. Any person using such a pass shall be subject, at all times and places, to all rules and policies of THE 
PARTY’S system upon whom they may be riding. 
 

6. This AGREEMENT may be terminated by any of the PARTIES, without cause, at the end of each annual 
summer period with written notice to the other PARTIES.  
 

7. THE PARTIES further agree, during the fourth quarter of 2021, to review together the effectiveness of this 
AGREEMENT and, at that time, to consider execution of a similar agreement. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Interlocal Agreement shall have the full force and effect from and after this 1st day of 
March 2020. [signatures to follow] 

February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 49



Summer Youth Pass Program 
Interlocal Agreement 2020-2022 
 

BY THE SIGNATURE OF THE UNDERSIGNED PUBLIC AGENCY, IT AGREES TO BE BOUND BY THE TERMS 
OF THE 2020-2022 INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR THE SUMMER YOUTH PASS PROGRAM. 
 
 
By:   
 (Name of authorizing signature) 
 
Its: (Title) 
 

February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 50



Resolution No. 2020-05 Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-05 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD 
AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO SIGN AN INTERLOCAL 
AGREEMENT RELATING TO THE SUMMER YOUTH PASS PROGRAM. 

 
 WHEREAS, Mason Transit Authority (MTA) desires to partner with Clallam Transit 
System, Grays Harbor Transportation Authority, Jefferson Transit Authority and Pacific 
Transit System to implement and promote youth ridership in the summer months by having 
a Summer Youth Pass Program; and 

 WHEREAS, MTA previously entered into an interlocal agreement in connection with the 
Summer Youth Pass Program, which agreement expired in 2019; and 

 WHEREAS, MTA desires to continue to partner with the above-referenced public 
transportation benefit authorities in the Summer Youth Pass Program for the years 2020-2022.  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
BOARD that the General Manager is authorized to execute the Summer Youth Pass Program 
Interlocal Agreement 2020-2022 between Clallam Transit System, Grays Harbor 
Transportation Authority, Jefferson Transit Authority and Pacific Transit System regarding 
the Summer Youth Pass Program during the years 2020-2022. 
 

Adopted this 18th day of February, 2020. 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Wes Martin, Chair     Sharon Trask, Vice-Chair 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
John Campbell, Authority Member   Kevin Dorcy, Authority Member 
 
 
_______________________________  ______________________________ 
Matt Jewett, Authority Member    Randy Neatherlin, Authority Member  
 
 
______________________________  ____________________________ 
Deborah Petersen, Authority Member  Kevin Shutty, Authority Member 

February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 51



Resolution No. 2020-05 Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
______________________________  
Sandy Tarzwell, Authority Member 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:    _______    ______ 
          Danette Brannin, General Manager 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:        ______ 
    Robert W. Johnson, Legal Counsel 
 
 
ATTEST:        DATE:    ______ 
           Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board 

February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 52



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   New Business – Item 3 – Actionable 
Subject:    Bus and Bus Facilities Grant Opportunity 
Prepared by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    February 18, 2020 
 
 
Background: 
 
The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) released a Notice of Funding Opportunity 
(NOFO) announcing the availability of approximately $454.6 million of Fiscal Year 2020 
funds for buses, bus facilities and bus equipment. There is a required minimum match 
of 20%. WSDOT would file the grant on MTA’s behalf as MTA is a subrecipient of 
federal funds. 
 
Staff would like to request three (3) 35’ coaches and six (6) cutaways to replace 
vehicles that are beyond useful life. FTA’s standards of Useful life for coaches are 12 
years and cutaways are 5 years. MTA extends out the useful life to 15 years for a coach 
and uses 7 years for a cutaway. 
 
The three coaches that need replacement are years 2002, 2003 and 2005. The 
cutaways are all year 2013. MTA has a State of Good Repair goal of 80% of the fleet 
still within MTA’s useful life range. Staff feels it is in the best interest to submit an 
application for a bus replacement grant even in light of potential funding loss due to I-
976 so as to keep the fleet as close to our SGR goal as possible as well as having safe 
and reliable vehicles to provide service and comfort to our citizens. Additionally, it takes 
one to two years to get vehicles on-site once awarded funds. By missing grant 
opportunities, it places vehicles even further beyond useful life by the time another 
opportunity arises. 
 
Staff feels current reserves would support encumbering $555,000 for the match and 
would not place MTA at risk of being able to fund the other projects already committed. 
The Operating Reserves set aside to help with a potential funding loss would remain 
designated for operating. 
 
 
Summary:  Approve staff to submit a grant application under the 5339(b) 
Bus and Bus Facilities Program. 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
$555,000 25% Match. 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 53



 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve. 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board authorize the General Manager submit a 
grant application to WSDOT on behalf of MTA for three (3) 35’ coaches and six (6) 
cutaways to the Bus and Bus Facilities Program. 
 
 

February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 54



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   Informational Report Item 1 - Informational 
Subject:    Mason Transit Authority Regional Mobility Park and Ride 

Progress Update 
Prepared by:  Patrick Holm, SCJ Alliance 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    February 18, 2020 
 
Summary for Discussion Purposes:   
 
Project Management:  SCJ is continually managing the design team and subconsultant 
team. SCJ is tracking on-going project progress.  
 
Permitting: Building Permit Plans were submitted 1/8/20 and are currently being 
reviewed. Plans were also submitted to Belfair Water District for review 1/3/20. 
 
Site permits are all approved for current construction. The SEPA determination was 
made on 4/12/19.  
 
Log Yard Road/SR 3 Roundabout Project: This project was advertised on 8/29/19. Bids 
will be opened on 9/20/19. The final items that need to be completed before 
construction can start are: 

• Construction 
o ACI is progressing construction 

 Upcoming construction includes: 
• Stormwater installation. 
• Joint utility trench install with PUD 3. 
• Grading of frontage road. 

 
Belfair Park and Ride Project Advertisement: The project will be advertised for 
construction 2/24/20. This date will allow incorporating of Mason County permit 
comments as an addendum. Anticipated bid open date would be 3/13. 
 
Pear Orchard Construction: This project is pending further contamination investigation 
by the city. 
 
Construction Documents: Construction Document/Bid Packages are ready for Pickering 
Road and Cole Road.  
 
Other progress: MTA and SCJ are in coordination with WSDOT and Parsons-Scarsella to 
evaluate the cost of the new Shelton-Matlock park and ride and to prepare a cost 
sharing agreement. 
 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 55



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   Informational Report Item 2 – Informational 
Subject:    Management Reports 
Prepared by:  Tracy Becht, Executive Assistant 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    February 18, 2020 
 
Summary for Informational Purposes: 
 
The monthly MTA Management Reports are attached for your information. 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 56



  

  

 

MTA MANAGEMENT REPORTS 
 

Submitted to MTA Authority Board February 18, 2020 
 

February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 57



 
 1 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

|2
/1

8/
20

20
  

 

MTA MANAGEMENT REPORTS 
Submitted to MTA Authority Board February 18, 2020 

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

Below is a l ist of major activit ies for the month: 
 
Park & Ride Development:  

• Please see enclosed Park and Ride Update for information. 
• Work continues on the roundabout.  
• Bid package for the Park & Ride in North Mason is scheduled to be released February 24, 2020.  
• Met with WSDOT regarding the park & ride at Shelton-Matlock. Working on an agreement with WSDOT 

for the contractor on the Coffee Creek Fish Passage Project to do a change order to complete the park 
& ride at that location. This would be the most beneficial for the public as there would be a cost 
savings of at least $200k. The contract for the fish passage includes an in-kind clause that the 
contractor moves the existing park & ride to a new location and install 30 paved stalls. It makes sense 
to have the contractor complete the entire park & ride. 

T-CC Parking Lot:   The Pre-Construction meeting is scheduled for Thursday, February 20. 
WSTA/SMTA: Attended the Small-Medium Transit Alliance meeting and the quarterly WSTA Board Meeting. The 
second day of the board meeting was held at the Capitol which allowed Representatives and Senators to come 
speak to the Board. 
I-976: The judge has ruled against all claims of the lawsuit, except for two. The two claims left are not related 
to Multi-modal Funding. Legislative has not given transits a time as to when impacts would go into effect, and 
from all that was said at the WSTA Board Meeting, it appears it will hit hardest in the next biennium. 
EDC: Attended monthly EDC Board Meeting.  
External Activities: 

• Attended PRTPO Technical Advisory Committee meeting via teleconference. 
• Met with Senator Saldana regarding MTA funding for park & ride. Sen. Saldana is the Vice Chair of the 

Senate Transportation Committee. 
• Attended the first annual Interagency Summit sponsored by Twin Transit in Centralia/Chehalis. 
• Participated via teleconference in Jefferson Transit’s Agency Advisory Committee meeting. 
• Attending the Transit Bus Summit February 17-19. 

Internal Activities: 
• Usual meetings with the Executive Team. Miscellaneous meetings with staff. 
• Prepared for and met with Employee Engagement Committee. 
• Met with Belfair office landlord to address building issues. 
• Met with marketing firm to go over progress of the graphic and PR projects. 
• All-Staff meeting was held February 9, 2020. 
• Working through contract compliance with our bus technology vendor. Have sent formal letter to 

terminate contract. 
• Continued working with Tracy and Josh on file management and structure of our network. 
• Finalized edits on the MTA Sick Leave Policy for Board approval.  
• Weekly phone calls for legislative updates. 
• Reviewed grant opportunities and went over financial reserves to access feasibility of applying for 

vehicle replacement. 

Board Assistance, Awareness and Support: 
I-976 impacts – Management will begin preparing for what potential service impacts will look like and continue 
to inform the board of any news regarding funding. We do not anticipate the impacts to be apparent until July 
2021 when the new biennium begins. However, that could change so we will begin to make steps toward 
preparing for changes sooner rather than later. 

February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 58



 

2 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

| 
2/

18
/2

02
0 

 

 

TEAM UPDATES 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES MANAGER – LeeAnn McNulty 
HR Support: 

• Finalized changes to the POL-310 MTA Sick Leave Policy. 
• Participated in the Employee Engagement Committee meeting to select the Employee of the Year 

recipient. 
• Submitted and received acceptance of 2019 FTA Drug and Alcohol reporting. 
• Working to implement the new integrated Performance Review module in Paylocity ahead of the 

upcoming performance review season. 
Wellness 

• We have a fantastic Wellness Committee put together.  Our immediate focus has been to create 
engaging content to launch the program at the annual All-MTA meeting. There are creative activities 
being designed to increase health awareness and develop a wellness culture. As the program gains 
traction, I will provide updates. 

• Promoted the benefits in participating in the agency’s wellness program through various channels; 
described the activities required for the agency to earn AWC WellCity distinction, and ways employees 
can earn incentives for participation.  

• Promoted the Naturally Slim weight loss program, a new benefit as part of AWC medical plans.  
Recruiting 

• Recruiting for back-up Worker Drivers.   
Administrative Functions 

• Beginning work on the financial component of the annual NTD report.  
• Led the Policy Committee meeting to present the proposed changes to MTA Sick Leave Policy 
• Prepared materials for presentation at the All-MTA annual meeting, Presented employees with 

information on Washington Paid Family Leave and the impact to Shared Leave, upcoming changes to 
the MTA Sick Leave Policy, tenure recognition and the Wellness launch. 

• In coordination with Maintenance staff, a total physical inventory was performed for vehicle parts on 
hand. 

 
MAINTENANCE/FACILITIES – Marshall Krier 
T-CC Facility: 

• Conference Room: About 100 people utilized the conference room for various functions in January. 
Inclement weather once again had numbers down due to travel conditions. We hosted the MTA 
monthly board meeting that had 23 attendees, our monthly F.E.S.S. sponsored “Consider the 
Children” classes (20 students), NW Life Centers service attracted 27 participants, and we hosted a 
few small events that totaled 30 visitors.  

• Kitchen: Kitchen use was very minimal due to the weather. We had 1 user from Taylor United utilize 
the kitchen and 2 technicians from Powerclean here to do our 5-year kitchen hood and ventilation 
cleaning. 

• Operations: Successfully maintained winter schedules, clear bus lanes and sidewalks at the T-CC. 
Developed a snow plan for T-CC with operations, M. Morrison, and M. Krier. Took lead on the cypher 
lock project for M. Ringgenberg on the Operations office at the T-CC. Worked with T. Becht on 
developing a logistics plan/schedule for the MTA All-staff meeting in February. Attended procurement 
meeting at Johns Prairie on January 9, 2019. 

 
Projects/Purchases 

• Finalize paperwork on a new kitchen use agreement for a new sandwich vendor “How Clever!” 
• Continue to help Scotti from S.S.D. with the Special Olympics Basketball program. 

 
Johns Prairie and Belfair Building Projects/Purchases/Maintenance: 

• Continue to meet with WSTA for planning the Spring Maintenance meeting and forum held in 
Vancouver March 31-April 2. 

• Completed yearly fire extinguisher inspections. 

February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 59



 
 3 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

|2
/1

8/
20

20
  

Vehicle Projects/Purchases/Maintenance: 
• Mini Cutaway: Performed the in-service inspections and licensing. Expect the vehicle to be in active 

service the week of February 17th 
• Hybrid Buses: Performed the in-service inspections and licensing. Conducted training with MTA  staff, 

Kitsap Transit and local first responders. Busses to be inspected at PSNS February 20th and then 
placed in active service. 

• Cutaways (9): We have completed factory specification confirmation and expect delivery by the middle 
of May. 

 

OPERATIONS – Mike Ringgenberg 
• New bus shelter:  Maintenance installed a bus shelter at 6543 E. Grapeview Loop and it looks GREAT! 
• Outreach presentations:  During the month of January, Kathy conducted outreach events at:  

conducted a radio outreach broadcast for our February 3 shake up, Steamboat Island Community Club 
annual meeting, League of Women Voters, Veterans Memorial Hall, and a Veterans Stand Down Event.  
Kathy attended the following meetings:  Moving Mason Forward, Mason County Chamber Gala, Opiate 
Stakeholders, and the TIP CAP monthly meeting. 

• Operations Supervisors:  Conducted 34 ride recovers and performed 69 driver assists. 
• Training:  Lisa trained four individuals in CPR/AED/FA.  Lisa has conducted 2020 Defensive 

Driver/Pass refresher class for 25 of 39 drivers.  Trina trained one Community Van driver. 
• Training Plan:  Lisa created a training memo to access Glacier West in the event of a power outage.   
• Vanpool:  Usage rate for January 2020 was 70%; 7 of 10 vans were in use.   
• Vehicles:  Bus 600, a new mini-DAR bus, has arrived at Johns Prairie and getting prepared for DAR in 

Belfair. Buses 860 and 861 have arrived at MTA are getting prepared to be a worker/driver bus for our 
PSNS routes.  The two W/D buses will be inspected by the Shipyard on February 20 and we have 
scheduled driver training on February 29 and March 7 to get our 7 drivers qualified.  Our goal is to put 
these two new buses into service on March 9. 

• WSTIP:  Lisa participated in a planning meeting for the WSTIP 2020 Trainer Showcase.   

  

February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 60



 

4 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

| 
2/

18
/2

02
0 

 

 

 

 

2020 WORK ITEMS UPDATE 
 

 

 

 

 

SEE ATTACHED SPREADSHEETS 

February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 61



2020 Work Items Completed as 
of 2/14/2020

Quarterly Driver traing and refresher training as required

Complete CAD/AVL/GPS installation

Change from flag stop to fixed stop in urban area of Shelton

Curbs or bollards at Johns Prairie

Purchase rain jackets

Manager or supervisor on-duty during service - Move Ops office

Ensure L & I safety compliance through training

Review WSTIP Best Practices for Safety

Define Safety Committee's purpose and direction

Review DAR services and hours for efficiency and availability

Expand Zipper route time to 8:00am-5:00pm √

Seek Pilot opportunities and funding

Continue review of Comp Service Review 

Conduct outreach for all service changes

Improve passenger amenities 

Plan for 2021 service adjustments due to impact of funding

Benchmark route performance and monitor low-performing routes

Procurement training for Public Works projects √

Prepare for I-976 impacts

Create needed financial policies or manual

Ensure compliance of grant contracts

Review 5-year sustainabililty plan 

Prepare for Paid Family Medical Leave rollout √
Maintain Fair Labor Standard Act compliance through updated 
training

Records Management - Network reorganization

Conduct Community Conversations to solicit input

Participate in community events

Promote City and County partnerships

Participate in outside committees, RTPO and boards

Participate in mentorship programs

Promote Volunteer Driver Program

Park & Ride project (through 2023)

Brand vehicles

Progression toward inclusion of electric vehicles

Improve communications through established methods

Incorporate wellness program and encourage participation

Promote skills and job knowledge

Bargain contracts for drivers and Comm Center

Employee Engagement committee 

Enhance meaningful employee recognition

Provide more Belfair interaction and oversight

Prepare a policy review schedule

Objective 4: Community Partnerships and Responsibility

Kathy is working on presentations to churches seeking VDP drivers

We have created new graphic design for W/D buses and are waiting for quotes to come back. Also working on 
a few other designs for cutaways.

New DAR hours started February 3, 2020. Monitoring will take place throughout 2020. Report of first two 
weeks shows 

Objective 3: Financial Stewardship

Staff attended training. Policy has been updated. Processes and forms have been created. Finance staff 
trained department heads.

We will begin to look at the financial impact as it appears the initative will be upheld. 

We will be presenting an updated 5-year sustainability plan to the Board in March.

Policy has been created. Employees have been presented with information at the All-MTA Meeting.

The file structure has been planned and the IT Team is in the process of creating a new drive.

Zipper route time has been expanded.

Working on pilot route for Lakeland Village.

We did outreach on our current service changes - public meetings, direct communication with riders and a 
radio spot.

Completed the information center at the T-CC

Objective 2: Effective Transportation Services

Working on logo to be placed on the jackets; will be using our WSTIP Safety Grant of $2,500 to purchase the 
rain jackets.

In process of moving Ops to T-CC. Furniture has been ordered.

Progress

4 CPR Trainings; all drivers did 8 hours of refresher training on ADA callouts, Mindful Driving and 
PASS(wheelchair) Training.

Letter of Termination has been sent; waiting refund and starting the process over.

Objective 1: Safe and Secure

Objective 5: Workplace Culture

Presentations: Radio spot, Steamboat Island Community Club, League of Women Voters, Veterans Memorial 
Hall, and Vetern's Stand Down Event.

Working with City on T-CC Parking Lot project

Kathy attended Moving Mason Forward, Opiate Stakeholder meeitn and TIP-CAP. Danette attended WSTIP 
Board Retreat (Vice-president), WSTA Board Meeting and the EDC Board meeting (Chair). Lisa Davis 
participating in the planning of WSTIP's 2020 Trainer Showcase.

See Park & Ride informational page for update.

Kick off of Wellness Program was done at the All-MTA Meeting with the first wellness challenge. The 
committee has several activities planned.

Committee continues to meet. A survey was prepared for the All-MTA meeting and we had 78% participation. 
The next project to work on is a communication flow chart.
We have revised the employee recognition policy; have incorporated a safety bonus for drivers; are being 
mindful of showing appreciation.

N:\Admin\Admin Shared\MTA Authority Board ARCHIVAL\2020 Authority Board\Workplan Update 2020
February 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg 62


	ADP17C8.tmp
	Mason Transit Authority
	Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting
	January 21, 2020
	NEW BUSINESS
	UPCOMING MEETINGS AND PUBLIC HEARINGS

	ADPFF89.tmp
	GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT
	Below is a list of major activities for the month:
	Board Assistance, Awareness and Support:

	TEAM UPDATES
	2020 WORK ITEMS UPDATE

	2020 02 14 Workplan Update 2020.pdf
	2020

	ADP66CD.tmp
	GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT
	Below is a list of major activities for the month:
	Board Assistance, Awareness and Support:

	TEAM UPDATES
	2020 WORK ITEMS UPDATE




